
 

 

ESSEX COUNTY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 
MEETING OF MAY 25, 2023, AT 7:00 P.M. 

109 CROSS STREET 
TAPPAHANNOCK, VIRGINIA 22560 

MINUTES 
 

Present: 
 
Steven Laffoon –Chairman 
Stephen Walters 
Gamaliel Rose 
Ned Stephenson 
 
Also Present: 
 
Kelly McKnight – Planning and Zoning Office Manager 
Rob Hodges - Planning and Zoning Administrator 
 
Absent 
 
Edward Haile 
 
Call to Order 
 
Chairman Laffoon called the May 25, 2023, meeting of the Essex County Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order. 
 
Roll Call 
 
Ms. McKnight called the roll. A quorum was met. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
Chairman Laffoon asked if there were questions on the minutes from the April 27, 2023, Board of Zoning 
Appeals. Mr. Rose made the motion to accept the minutes that were amended by Mr. Walters. The 
motion was made and seconded. AYES: 4 NAYES: 0 ABSENT: 1  
 
Public Comments 
 
None. 
 
Public Hearings 
 
V2300003 – R. Wayne and Patricia Allen 
Mr. Hodges stated that Wayne and Patricia Allen, 1236 Cloverdale Road, request a front setback 
variance to Essex County Zoning Ordinance Sections 36.224.C.1.b to facilitate the construction of a 36’ x 
28’ garage to replace, in the same footprint an existing garage at the front of the property. The variance 



 

 

is for a 33’ front setback variance to the 35’ front setback requirement for the principal building setback. 
The staff recommendation is the Board approve the variance request.  
 
Mr. Walters asked if the road was the egress road. Mr. Hodges stated that it is a private road.  
 
Mr. Walters asked if it met VDOT standards? Mr. Hodges stated that is a private gravel road and it is not 
VDOT standards. The County has not asked VDOT to take over that road and is not a unique situation.  
 
Mr. Woody Coffer, next door neighbor, handed out a map. The existing building has been there. The lots 
have been there since 1924. And the County has put in ordinances that don’t fit this size lot. It is on a 
private road with a 15’ easement. In his opinion all the houses face the river, and the kitchen is on the 
back which he classifies as an alley.  
 
 Chairman Laffoon asked a question about the property line and the easement for the property. We 
need to establish the boundaries and once the boundaries are set, we can record it properly. 
 
Chairman Laffoon stated he is in favor of the motion, but it needs to be correct whether it is a 33’ 
variance or a 34’ variance. 
 
Mr. Walters stated that we don’t have a problem with them building the shed exactly where it sits now. 
 
Mr. Stephenson asked if all variances that we approve, the burden is on the landowner to abide by the 
correct property line. He feels that we are trying to impose something that we don’t do with other 
people. If a survey is required to ensure that he complies with the 33’ setback that we have approved 
and if he violates that the burden is on him.  
 
Mr. Rose stated that by approving it based on the predicate of the current location if it is misdrawn then 
it will be mis built. 
 
Mr. Stephenson said it would seem that the approval could be for a 33’ setback.  
 
Chairman Laffoon asked what if they need a 34’ setback? Mr. Stephenson stated he would need to come 
and present the evidence that he needs that. 
 
Mr. Rose asked what is less onerous to him, we stipulate the existing footprint, subject to survey or we 
make him come back through this process. 
 
Chairman Laffoon stated he did not want him to have to come back. He just feels that before the permit 
is issued it could be in our motion that we are approving it in the footprint where it is. Before the permit 
is issued it has to be shown on the proper documents as to where it is located. 
 
Mr. Walters asked if they could do a conditional approval? We could move that we grant them 
permission to build in the same envelope that it is in right now conditional of them coming back with an 
accurate measurement of the property line to where the existing structure to get the proper setbacks.  
 
Mr. Rose made the motion to allow construction of the shed on the existing footprint provided that the 
footprint be established and shown to be within the existing property lines before issuance of the 
building permit. Mr. Stephenson seconded the motion. AYES: 4 NAYES: 0 ABSENT: 1 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

V2300004- Essex County 
Mr. Hodges stated that Essex County Parks and Recreation is requesting a 16-foot square variance for 
each sign. They want to put up two free standing signs at Poor House Park. The signs are 16’ long and 
9‘tall. The staff recommends the approval of this variance. 
 
Mr. Stephenson made the motion to approve. Mr. Rose seconded AYES: 4 NAYES: 0 ABSENT: 1 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 
New Business 
 
None 
 
Old Business 
 
Mr. Walters stated that with the Planning Commission they discussed the LaGrange Industrial Park the 
Cul-de-sac they approved a holding area across the street from the Essex Recycling center. It was a 
change in zoning from I1 to I2. Coming up is a PUD in discussion next Tuesday.  
 
Mr. Hodges stated that the change in zoning and the conditional use permit will also need to have 
variance approval from the BZA because of the fencing and the 150’ setback. 
 
 
Miscellaneous 
 
None. 
 
Adjourn 
 
Having no further business, the meeting of May 25, 2023, was adjourned by Chairman Laffoon. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Stephen Laffoon - Chairman 


